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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT |

Members of the City Council
City of Willows
Glenn County, California

I have audited the accompanying financial of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Willows, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my
audit. I conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



I'believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my audit opinions.

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Willows, California, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, and other required supplementary information
shown as statements one, two and three, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The schedule of changes
in individual funds is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements of the City.

Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In my opinion, the supplemental schedule is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated
January 8, 2015, on my consideration of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and



compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

I have also performed tests to determine that expenditures paid by the City were made in
accordance with the allocation instructions and resolutions of the Glenn County
Transportation Commission and in conformance with the California Transportation
Development Act. Specifically, I performed each of the specific tasks identified in
California Code of Regulations Section 6666 that are applicable to the City.

January 8, 2016

e

RoyR. Seiler, CPA
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Willows (City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s overall net position ended at $7,795,888 as a result of this year’s operations and a
significant prior period adjustment due to a change in accounting principle associated with
pensions.

During the year, the City’s taxes, other governmental revenues and business activity revenues
exceeded expenses by $438,915 including the effect of depreciation, a non-cash expense, of
$497,071.

Governmental net assets ended the year at $2,253,651, and were significantly negatively
impacted by a prior period adjustment downward ($5,267,364) due to a change in accounting
principle associated with pensions.

The total revenues from all sources were $9,739,502.

The total cost of all City programs was $9,300,578.

The General Fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded expenditures and other
financing uses by $167.

Actual resources received in the General Fund were greater than the final budget by $42,263,
while actual expenditures and operating transfers were $98,415 less than final budget.

At the end of the fiscal year, fund balance for the General Fund was $1,358,483 or 37.8% of total
General Fund expenditures.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The three components of the
financial statements are:

1. Government-wide financial statements, which include the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities. These statements provide information about the activities of
the City as a whole.

2. Fund financial statements describe how City services are financed in the short term as

well as what resources are available for future spending. Fund financial statements also
report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by
providing information about the City’s most significant funds.

3. Notes to the financial statements.

Reporting the City as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide)

A frequently asked question regarding the city’s financial health is whether the year’s activities
contributed positively to the overall financial well-being. The Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a

way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector



companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and changes thereto. Net position, the
difference between assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the City’s financial health, or
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the net position are an indicator of
whether the financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, it is important to consider
other non-financial factors such as changes in the City’s property tax base or condition of the
City’s roads and other infrastructure assets to accurately assess the overall health of the City.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present information about the
following.

Governmental activities - All of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental
activities, including general government, community development, public safety, public works,
and community services. Property taxes, sales taxes, Vehicle License Fees (VLF), transient
occupancy taxes, and franchise fees finance most of these activities.

Business (proprietary fund) type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover all or
most of the cost of the services provided. The City’s sewer and water services are reported in this
category.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds--not
the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law or by bond
covenants. However, management establishes many other funds that aid in the administration of
resources for particular purposes or meet legal responsibilities associated with the usage of
certain taxes, grants, and other money. The City’s three kinds of funds, govemmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary use different accounting approaches as explained below.

Governmental funds - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds.
Governmental funds focus on how resources flow in and out with the balances remaining at year-
end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted
to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information shows whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance the City’s programs.

Business Type (Proprietary) funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides,
these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the
same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities.

Fiduciary Funds- Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government or for specific contributions, gifts, or bequests made on the government’s
behalf by non-public entities. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial



statements, as those funds are not available to support general City programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the City’s governmental and
business activities are presented in total on these tables.

Table 1
City of Willows’ Net Position
(Full Accrual)
Governmental % Governmental %
Activities Activities
2015 2014
Current and Other Assets $4,267,643 52.8 $4,576,967 52.8
Capital Assets 4,103,356 47.2 4,099,851 472
Deferred Outflows-Pension 541,469 6.1
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 8,912,468 100.0 8,676,818 100.0
Current and Other Liabilities $ 871,611 98 §$1,727,316 199
Long-Term Debt 50,314 5 98,579 11
Net Pension Liability 4,749,972 53.3
Deferred Inflows-Pension _986.920 11.1

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 6,658,817 74.7 1,825,895 21.0

Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets $4,004,777 449 $3,955,110 45.6
Net of Debt
Committed for Working Capital 200,000 2.2 200,000 23
Committed for Surplus Property 5,000 0.1 5,000 0.1
Uncommitted (4,201,766) 47.1) 995,634 11.5
(2015 Net of Adjustment of $5,267,364)
Restricted For:
Parks, Recreation, Public Works 1,602,430 18.0 1,293,806 149
Library 119,729 1.3 41,115 05
Public Safety 186,003 2.1 73,868 0.8
Housing & Community Development _ 337,478 3.8 286.390 33

Total Net Position $2.253.651 253 $6.850.923 79.0




Table 1 (Cont’d)
City of Willows’ Net Position

(Full Accrual)
Business-Type % Business-Type %
Activities Activities
2015 2014
Current and Other Assets $2,176,799 172 $2,310,217 17.8
Capital Assets 10,432,729 82.3 10,669,946 82.8
Deferred Outflows-Pension 62.643 .5
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 12,672,171 100.0 12,980,163 100.0
Current and Other Liabilities $ 215,028 1.7 § 251,572 19
Long-Term Debt 6,141,000 484 6,238,000 48.1
Net Pension Liability 654,671 52
Deferred Inflows-Pension __ 119235 9
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 7,129,934 56.2 6,489,572 50.0
Net Position:
Invested in Capital Assets $4,104,729 324 § 4,338,946 33.4
Net of Debt
Restricted For:
Debt Service 288,600 23 252,600 1.9
Utility Service 1,148,908 9.1 1,899,045 14.7
(2015 Net of Adjustment of $-717,177)
Total Net Position $ 5,542,237 43.8 $6,490,591 50.0

Items noted in Red in Table 1 and any subsequent Tables or Exhibits in this Report are noted as reported
amounts due to the adoption during fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 by the City of Willows of Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68-Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.



N Tuble 2
City of Willows Changes In Net Position

(Full Accrual)
Governmental Business-Type  Total Governmental Besiness-Type Totsl $
Activities Activitios Activities Activities Change
2015 2015 2014 2014

REVENUES:
Program Revenues:

Charges lor Services s 27250 § 1,628,600 § 1,655,850 $ 924 § 1650492 § 1674416 S (18,566)
Operating Grants/C i $ 4485816 $ 4485816 § 1,235,618 S 1235618 $ 3,250,198
Capital Grants/Contribulions § 62,119 § - 8 62119 $ 268233 § - 8 168,233 $  (206,114)
General Revennos: s - L1 *
Taxen $ 2511649 $ 2511649 $ 2,544,170 $ 154,170 § (s
Intergovernmental (Non-Restrict $§ 498,144 $ 498,144 § 495205 S 495,208 H 2,939
Investment Income $ 27105 § 7547 § M652 § 23812 § 8909 § 37,781 s 3,129)
Other S 9127 S 491,272 $ 428,164 s 426,164 $ 63,108
TOTAL REVENUES $ 8,103,335 § 1,616,147 § 9,739,502 § 5,024,186 $ 16594001 § 6,683,537 $ 3,088918
EXPENSES:
General Governmenti $ 599,297 $ 599,297 S 592,829 s 592,829 1 6,468
Public Safety $ 2,243,635 $ 2,243,655 $ 2,220,529 $ 2,220,529 H 23,126
Parks and Public Works $ 649,587 § 649557 $ 666321 s 666,321 s  (16,764)
Library $ 259954 $ 259,954 $ 284,021 $ 284,121 S (24167)
Recreation $ 149,209 $ 149209 $ 159,028 s 159,028 H (9.819)
Housing/ Commuuity Developme $ 3,608,825 $ 3,608,825 $ 987,861 H 987,861 § 2,620,964
Sewer § 1,702,681 $ 1,782,681 $ 1685398 §  1,685398 3 97,283
Water $ 7,409 8 7409 $ 6807 $ 6,807 s 602
TOTAL EXPENS ES $ 7510497 § 1,790,090 S 9,300,567 $ 4910689 § 1,692,205 § 6,601,894 $ 2,697,693
INCREASE IN NET POSITION § 592,058 $ (153,943) § 438915 $ 113497 §  (32804) § 80,693 $ 358222
BEFORE TRANSFERS
Transfers $ 771234 $ (17234) $ - [ 77,23 § (17234) § -
INCREASEIN NET POSITION S 670092 S (23,177) § 438915 $ 190,731 § (110,038) § 80,693
NETPOSITIO N-July t $ 6850923 § 6490591 $13,341 514 $ 6660192 $§ 6,600,629 $ 13,260,821
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT S (5,267,364) S8 (717,177) $(5,984,541) s -
NET POSITIO N-Jume 10 $ 2283651 § 5542,237 § 7,795.888 $ 6850923 $ 6490591 § 13341514

The City’s combined net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was $7,795,888. Specifically, the
City’s net position for governmental activities were $2,253,651 , while business-type activities resulted in a
net position of $5,542,237. Please further note that the net position for June 30, 2015 include the result of
adjustment due to GASB 68 compliance in the amount of $5,267,264 for governmental activities and
$717,177 for business-type activities

The City experienced an increase in revenues from operating grants and contributions of $3.25MM due
primarily to the continuation of the HOME-Senior Housing Grant ($3.37MM). Capital Grant Revenue
decreased by $204K primarily to the funding in the prior year for a street sweeper via Gas Tax ($204K).

Housing and Community Development expenditures were $2.61MM greater than prior year. Again, as
noted above, the HOME-Senior Housing project continued in 2014-15 ($3.37MM in expenditures).



One transfer is included in the City-wide Statement of Activities. $77,234 is transferred annually to the
General Fund from the Sewer Fund for administrative services provided by City personnel not directly
funded by the Sewer
Table 3
Statement of Inter-fund Transfers
(Full Accrual, in Whole Dollars)

Govemmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2015 2015
{nterfund Transfer In (Out)
General Fund $ 71,234 3 77,234
Sewer Fund $ (77,234) S (77,234)
Fund Net Transfer $ 77,234 $ (77,234) $0
Table 4
Statement of Inter-Fund Transfers and Due To/From Fund Transactions
(Modificd A 1, Per Fund S )
Gov 1 Business-Type
Activitics Aclivities Total
2015 2015 2015

Interfund Transfers In (by Fund):

1) General s 77234 s 77.234

@) Community Discretionary b 14,493 s 14,493
Interfund Transfers Out (By Fund)

) Sower s (77,234) s (77,234)

@) 1992 CDBG Housing Loans $ (4,076) s (4,076)

@) 2003 CDBG Housing Loans $ (1,093) s {1,093)

@ 1990 CDBG Housing Loans $ (3.264) s (3,264)

@ 1997 CDBG Housing Loans $ (3,725) s (3,725)

2) 2000 CDBG Housing Loans $ 2,335) s 2,335)
Net Transfers In and Out 5 77:_3.34 3 (77.234) $
Amounts Duc from Other Funds:

3) General s 209,514 5 209,514
Amounts Due to Other Funds:

[€)] STIP 3 (62,119) 3 (62,119)

()] Supp | Law Ei Services 5 (28574) $ (28,574)

3) USDOJ CHRP I 5 (31,427) $ (31,427)

) OJP-Vest s 444) s (444)

3) CDBG-Housing Studies 5 (27340) s (21,340)

(3) HOME Senior Housing Project H (59.610) 3 (59,610)
Net Amounts Duc to/from Other Funds hd s - $

(1) Annual transfer to the General Fund from the Sewer Fund for administrative services provided by City
personnel not directly funded by the Sewer Fund.

(2) Transfer of loan payments received on CDBG housing rehabilitation loans that are not subject to CDBG
revolving requirements.

(3) Due to General Fund from various funds where receivable balances are recorded at 6/30/15, but funds have
not yet been received to caver cash deficits.

Items (2) and (3) are included on the modified accrual Balance Sheet or Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance but are eliminated in the full accrual statements.



Schedule of Chun

Madifed Acorual Oiher Fands

Thbls §

Full Actrusl Baterprite Punds

2 In tadividusi Funds

NET PRIOR NET TRANSFERS TRANSFERS NET
POSITION PERIOD RECHPTS (L1 ouT FOSITION
FUND June 30, 2014 ADIUSTMENT Jane 30, 2015
GENERAL FUND
Goaeral Fand 1,153,316 (77,06T) 724 1,153,483
Cenernl Fand-Working Revarve 280,000 L] 208,008
General Fand-Surplus Property 2,000 ) 1,000
TOTAL GENIRAL FUND A58, 316 [] (T7,067) I L} 1358483
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS FUNDS
Slate Transportation Improvement Program o L] 1)
Willows Lighting and Landscape District 5,837 354 10,49
TDA-Local Transporiatlon Pande 32,282 222 32504
Mall Msintapance 117125 (2,726) 14999
Sigrm Deainsge Impact 174,194 73,195 247449
Street Development Impaci 29,699 40,162 69,881
Park Facililies Impact 131,476 101,768 283,241
E5 Interchange Impmcl 283,155 23,181 6336
CA Recycle Grant 6,371 599 3,970
TOTAL PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS 706,739 [] 236,832 [] [] 942,571
GAS TAX TUNDS
RSTP 187,989 17483 205468
Gas Tax 2108 76,740 14,987 93,647
Cas Thx 2106 9271 (6.969) 2,682
Gus Tax 2107 31,951 (19,480) 2471
Gas Tax 2107.8 368 AT 4,299
Gan Tex 2103 Inodex 3744 WTH4L
TOTAL GAB TAX STR.74) a AT AL L] L G646 407
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CertHled Acson Specialist 633 iy 950
Community Discrelionary 138,245 (17,286) 14,493 135442
200) CDBG Houslng Loans [ 1,093 1,092 0
Economic Deviopment 43,641 1.,776) J5865
1992 CDBG Housing Lawns o 4076 4,076 L)
1590 CDBG Houslog Losns [ 3,264 3,264 L)
1997 CDBG Housing Losns [ 3,728 3,728 1]
2000 CDBG Housing Loans [ 2,335 2,338 0
RLA - @eusing Rehab 2,087 (2,087) 1)
HOME Program Revolving Lean 101,814 63,57 165211
HOME-Senier Houslng Project 0 o 0
TOTAL HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT " THE IS0 L] S1.00m 14493 ) ITAN
RECREATION
Receeation Helmburcable 6,837 4,317 11,134
Recreatlon Cullural 1287 ? 1,196
TOTAL RECREATION 8124 L) 4316 L} L] [ERE
LIBRARY
Cously Library 12,143 5,751 17894
LTSA-Techaology Grast 10 {10y L)
CLA-Packard 62 (62) 0
Nortbnel-Tralulng Bunding o (153 892
CLSA-Dsilvery Funding 2,663 1478 4,119
Literacy Passihrough L 4 L)
Library-Developmeni Impact .27 70,358 Teps
TOTAL LIBRARY 41,118 ] L TIE) [] [] 11,729
PUBLIC SAFETY
Anget Forfeiture 1 o 1
Flro-Davelspment Im pact 35,606 92,218 117821
Fire Actlvity in 0 3
Pollce Development Ispace 16,136 40,129 48,259
FEMA Rioess Grant 265 (289 [
BLESF 19,891 (10,080) 9,891
CHRP-Hiring Grant [ L] [
AB 109 Overlime [ [ [}
OJP- BVP Program o [] [
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY T3 H68 [] Y 112,138 L] o 184,003
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Non-Expendible Trust Punds 128,797 (11,813) 113984
Agvocy Funds 236,513 16,749) 29,747
TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS RLEETH o (9,381) o L] 3370
ENTERFRISE FUNDS
Sewer Entarprive 6,380,392 (TI7477) (134,050} 17,334 8,43790
Water Entarprise 104,199 107 194,306
TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 5.A90,591 174 {153.347) [ TEM ssn
TOTALS F.906,398 {717,177} 170870 91.737 1,727 I AN OV

Major (>$100K) Net Position changes during the year included Park Facilities Development Impact Fees
(+$102K) resulting from a large development (Sr. Housing Complex) and Sewer Enterprise (-8154K) due
to higher than expected utility cost due to performance issues with the solar complex.



GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Actual General Fund revenues were greater than the final adopted budget. Total revenues were
$42,263 (1.2%) over budget. Permit Fees as a result of increased building and development
activity ($36K) was the primary reason for the variance.

All General Fund expenditures finished the year under budget with a total cost savings of 2.7% or
$98,415. Temporary position vacancies in the Library and in Public Works (340K, combined)
was the largest item contributing to the savings. In addition, Parks and Public Works experienced
savings of $25K as Gas Tax funds were able to be utilized in several areas rather than General
Fund dollars and several anticipated expenditure items did not materialize.

The final impact on the General Fund’s fund balance was an increase of $167 reflecting revenues
totaling $3,516,647, expenditures totaling $3,593,714, and an operating transfer in in the amount
of $77,234.

Table 6
Schedule of Budgetary Expenditure Changes

Amount of

Increase/(Decrease)
Fund From Original Budget
(1)General Fund $127,648
(2)Community Discretionary 7,438
(3)Water Enterprise 25,000
(4)NCCSIF-Safety and ADA 10,562
(5) Gas Tax 2103 225,000

(1) General Fund items include appropriation of funds associated with recejipt of surplus property
sale proceeds ($55K), Police overtime augmentation ($50K), augmentation to Fire
maintenance and repair items ($3K), and additional contract services for the Building
Department ($20K).

(2) Community Discretionary augmentations include funding for mural painting at the skate park
($3K) and supplement to cost of ADA compliance plan study ($4K)

(3) Water Enterprise ($25K) for emergency repair and replacement of pump, motor and well
casing.

(4) NCCSIF appropriated for ADA compliance plan study ($11K).

(5) Gas Tax 2103 ($225) appropriated for reconstruction of a portion of Tehama Street.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The City utilizes internal management of cash and investments, utilizing informal advisory
relationships with Stiefel Nicolaus and Edward Jones Investments, and maintains flexibility by
utilizing a pooled cash system. Under the pooled cash concept, the City invests the cash of all
funds with maturities planned to coincide with cash needs. Cash is invested in certain eligible
securities as constrained by law and further limited by the City’s investment policy. The goals of
the City’s investment policy are safety, liquidity and yield.



Cash Management is subject to oversight by the Finance Committee, consisting of the Finance
Director/City Treasurer, and two appointed members of the City Council.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The capital assets of the City are those assets that are used in performance of City functions
including infrastructure assets. Capital assets include equipment, buildings, land, park facilities,
and roads. GASB-34 allows the City of Willows to report infrastructure assets in process or
completed after June 15, 2003; reporting of infrastructure assets prior to June 15, 2003 is not
required, and, therefore is not included in capital asset totals.

At June 30, 2015, net capital assets of the governmental activities totaled $4,103,356 and the net
capital assets of the business-type activities totaled $10,432,729. Depreciation on capital assets is
recognized in the Government-wide financial statements but not in the fund financial statements.

Table 7
Schedule of Significant Capital Acquisitions
And Projects
Description Expenditure Amount Status at June 30, 2015
Update Network Infrastructure $ 70,577 Complete
Sacramento and Butte St. Reconstruction 107,217 In Progress

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The City has total governmental type liabilities and deferred outflows of $6,658,817 which
includes $4,965,973 in a long-term liabilities, consisting of lease liabilities for a fire engine,
compensated absences deemed to be payable in a year or more, and new for 2015, actuarially
based pension liability resulting from implementation of GASB 68. Business type liabilities total
$7,129,934, which includes $6,808,880 in long-term liabilities pertaining to wastewater treatment
facility renovations completed in 2007, accrued compensated absences deemed to be payable in a
year or more, and actuarially derived pension liability resulting from implementation of GASB 68.

NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS

In considering the City’s Budget for fiscal year 2015/16, the City Council and management
recognized the ongoing cost of maintaining operations, is of paramount concern, primarily in the
areas of future pension cost and health care. In addition, the City is participating in a major
development project.

The General Fund budget for 2015/16 includes an operating deficit of $219,366 utilizing existing
General Fund reserves ($1,358,483 available at July 1, 2015) to cover the projected deficit.



CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the City’s Finance Department:

By mail By Phone By E-Mail
City of Willows 530-934-7041 tsailsbery@gcityofwillows.org
201 North Lassen Street

Willows, California 95988
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ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Cash and Investments
Receivable:
Accounts
Interest
Intergovernmental/Other
Deferred Loans
Prepaid Expenses
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
Deferred Outflow of Resources-Pension

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

EXHIBIT ONE

LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Interest Payable
Other Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences
Payable Withing One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Other
Deferred Revenue
OPEB Liability
Notes Payable
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Inflow of Resources-Pension

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Committed for Working Capital
Committed for Surplus Property
Uncommitted-(Net of Prior Period Adjustment$-5,267,364)
Restricted For:

Parks, Recreation, Public Works, and Streets

Library

Public Safety

Housing and Commuuity Development

Utility Service-(Net of Priod Perid Adjustment$-717,177)

Debt Service

TOTAL NET POSITION

CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30,2015
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Funds
3,444,033 1,957,075 5,401,108
218,197 218,197
5,312 1,527 6,839
402,672 402,672
411,773 411,773
3,853 3,853
4,103,356 10,432,729 14,536,085
541,469 62,643 604,112
8,912,468 12,672,171 21,584,639
55,419 17,009 72,428
4,338 64,316 68,654
18,410 1,469 19,879
165,687 13,217 178,904
191 191
423,813 423,813
155,488 22,017 177,505
48,265 97,000 145,265
50,314 6,141,000 6,191,314
4,749,972 654,671 5,404,643
986,920 119,235 1,106,155
6,658,817 7,129,934 13,788,751
4,004,777 4,104,729 8,109,506
200,000 200,000
5,000 5,000
(4,201,766) (4.201,766)
1,602,430 1,602,430
119,729 119,729
186,003 186,003
337,478 337,478
1,148,908 1,148,908
288,600 288,600
2,253,651 5,542,237 7,795,888

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT THREE

CITY OF WILLOWS
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2015
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Investments 1,213,106 2,230,927 3,444,033
Receivables:
Intergovernmental 168,736 233,936 402,672
Interest 3,296 2,016 5,312
Deferred Loans 411,773 411,773
From Other Funds 209,514 209,514
Other 3,853 3,853
TOTAL ASSETS 1,598,505 2,878,652 4,477,157

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 43,694 11,725 55,419
Due to Other Funds 209,514 209,514
Compensated Absences 184,097 184,097
Other 191 191
TOTAL LIABILITIES 227,982 221,239 449,221
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue 12,040 411,773 423,813
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCE 12,040 411,773 423,813
FUND BALANCE
Fund Balances:
Commiitted for Working Capital 200,000 200,000
Committed for Surplus Property 5,000 5,000
Uncommitted 1,153,483 1,153,483
Restricted for:
Parks, Recreation, Public Works, and Streets 1,602,430 1,602,430
Library 119,729 119,729
Public Safety 186,003 186,003
Housing and Community Development 337,478 337,478
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,358,483 2,245,640 3,604,123
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFFERED INFLOWS 1,598,505 2,878,652 4,477,157

OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF WILLOWS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
Of Government Funds to the
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Total Fund Balance-Total Governmental Funds
Amounts Reported For Governmental Activities
in the Statement of Net Assets are Different Because: 3,604,123

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation and 4,004,777
Related Debt, Are Not Financial Resources, and,
Therefore, Are Not Reported in the Funds

Deferred Outflow of Resources-Pension is an actuarial deferral 541,469
related to pension activity. Pension activity is reported at the time
of payment in Funds.

Accrued Interest Expense is treated as an Expenditure (4,338)
in the Year of Payments in Funds, and Therefore, Not
Reported until Paid in Funds

The unpaid annual contribution for accrued other post employment (155,488)
benefits is a long term obligation not due and payable in the current period,
and, therefore, not reported in governmental funds

Net Pension Liability is an actuarial liability related to pension activity. 4,749,972)
Pension activity is reported at the time of payment in Funds.

Deferred Inflow of Resources-Pension is an actuarial deferral (986,920)
related to pension activity. Pension activity is reported at the time

of payment in Funds.

Net Position of Governmental Activities 2,253,651

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT FOUR

CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes 2,511,649 2,511,649
Licenses, Permits and Franchise 274,936 274,936
Fines Forfeitures and Penalties 15,591 15,591
Intergovernmental 498,144 4,028,658 4,526,802
Charges for Services 117,778 27,250 145,028
Interest 15,582 11,523 27,105
Other 82,967 519,277 602,244
Total Revenue 3,516,647 4,586,708 8,103,356
EXPENDITURES
General Government 581,027 581,027
Public Safety 2,064,694 208,143 2,272,837
Parks and Public Works 384,789 160,061 544,850
Recreation 139,791 11,863 151,654
Library 154,187 105,645 259,832
Housing and Community Development 170,102 3,441,429 3,611,531
Capital Outlay 99,124 109,106 208,230
Total Expenditures 3,593,714 4,036,247 7,629,960
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (77,067) 550,462 473,395
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 77,234 14,493 91,727
Transfers Qut (14,493) (14,493)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 77,234 0 77,234
Net Change in Fund Balance 167 550,462 550,628
Fund Balance, July 1, 2014 1,358,316 1,695,179 3,053,495
Fund Balance, June 30, 2015 1,358,483 2,245,641 3,604,123

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF WILLOWS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to

Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended June 30, 2015

Amounts Reported For Governmental Activities
in the Statement of Activities are Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balances: Total Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds Reported Capital Qutlays as
Expenditures

In the Statement of Activities, the Cost of Capital Assets is
Allocated Over their Estimated Useful Lives as Depreciation
Expense

In the Statement of Activities, Capital Lease Payment is Reported in
Interest Expense and Reduction In Outstanding Debt Components.
It is treated as an expenditure for Governmental Fund purposes.

Accrued Interest pertaining to the Capital Lease is treated as an expens
when accrued on the Statement of Activities. It will not be treated as
an expenditure until paid for Governmental Fund purposes.

In the Statement of Activities-Pension Expense is derived from
a number of actuarial factors. In Governmental Funds, expenditures

for Pensions are reported as payment is made.

Accrued Other Post Employment Benefit is treated as an expense when

550,628

208,230

(204,726)

52,603

(4,338)

71,941

(4,246)

accrued on the Statement of Activities. It will not be treated as an expediture

until paid for Governmental Fund purposes.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

670,092

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT FIVE
CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2015

Sewer Water
Enterprise Enterprise
Funds Fund Totals
ASSETS:
Current Assets
Cash 1,947,888 9,187 1,957,075
Receivables:
Accounts 218,029 168 218,197
Interest 1,501 26 1,527
Total Current Assets 2,167,418 9,381 2,176,799
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets
Systems and Improvements 12,937,988 162,133 13,100,121
Licensed Vehicles 526,045 526,045
Equipment 76,099 76,099
Accumulated Depreciation (3,202,328) (67,208) (3,269,536)
Total Non-Current Assets 10,337,804 94,925 10,432,729
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Pension Qutflows 62,643 62,643
TOTAL ASSETS 12,567,865 104,306 12,672,171
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 17,009 17,009
Accrued Compensated Absences 14,686 14,686
Accrued Interest Payable 64,316 64,316
Notes Payable- Current Portion 97,000 97,000
Total Current Liabilities 193,011 0 193,011
Non-Current Liabilities
OPEB Payable 22,017 22,017
Notes Payable 6,238,000 6,238,000
Less: Current Portion (97,000) (97,000)
Net Pension Liabllity 654,671 654,671
Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,817,688 0 6,817,688
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Pension Inflows 119,235 119,235
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,129,934 0 7,129,934
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 4,009,804 94,925 4,104,729
Restricted for Debt Service 288,600 288,600
Restricted for Utility Service 1,139,527 9,381 1,148,908
(Net of Prior Period Adjustment $-717,177)
TOTAL NET POSITION 5,437,931 104,306 5,542,237

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT SIX

CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SEWER WATER
ENTERPRISE ENTERPRISE
FUND FUND TOTALS
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services 1,553,360 7,389 1,560,749
Connection Fees 4,421 4,421
Development Impact Fees 63,430 63,430
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,621,211 7,389 1,628,600
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and Benefits 365,295 365,295
Maintenance 86,393 877 87,270
Utilities 166,475 331 166,306
Professional Fees 615,711 1,192 616,903
Depreciation 288,228 4,118 292,346
Other 891 891
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,522,102 7,409 1,529,511
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 99,109 (20) 99,089
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income 7,420 127 7,547
Interest Expenses (260,579) (260,579)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES
AND EXPENSES (253,159) 127 (253,032)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS (154,050) 107 (153,943)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfer Qut (77,234) (77,234)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (77,234) 0 (77,234)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (231,284) 107 (231,177)
NET POSITION, July 1, 2014 6,386,392 104,199 6,490,591
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT-Net (717,177) (717,177)

Pension Liability Recordation

NET POSITION, June 30, 2015 5,437,931 104,306 5,542,237

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,



EXHIBIT SEVEN

Page 1of2
CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Sewer Water
Enterprise Enterprise Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Sewer Services and Connections 1,621,616 1,621,616
Cash Received from Water Services 7,221 7,221
Cash Payments for Employee and Related Expenses (372,250) (372,250)
Cash Payments for Repairs and Maintenance (87,192) (905) (88,097)
Cash Payments for Utilities (165,977) (331) (166,308)
Cash Payments for Professional and Contract Services (656,207) (1,213) (657,420)
Cash Payments for Other Expenses (891) (891)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 339,990 3,881 343,871
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Operating Transfers In 0 0 0
Operating Transfers Out (77,234) 0 (77,234)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (77,234) 0 (77,234)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of Capital Assets (30,606) (24,523) (55,129)
Interest Paid (259,236) (259,236)
Payment on Long Term Debt (93,000) (93,000)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (382,842) (24,523) (407,365)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Received 7,864 148 8,012
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 7,864 148 8,012
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (112,222) (20,494) (132,716)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1, 2014 2,060,110 29,681 2,089,791
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 2015 1,947,888 9,187 1,957,075

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT SEVEN
Page 20f2

CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Sewer Water
Enterprise Enterprise Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) By Operating Activities
Operating Income 99,109 0) 99,089
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Operating Activities:

Depreciation 288,228 4,118 292,346
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables 406 (168) 238
Increase (Decrease) in Payables (40,797) 9 (40,846)
Increase (Decrease) in Aecrued Compensated Absences (2,251) (2,251)
Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Liability 1,209 1,209
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (5,914) (5,914)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 339,990 3.881 343,871

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT EIGHT

CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2015
Non Expendible
Trust Agency
Fund Funds Totals
ASSETS:
Cash and Investments 113,822 230,764 344,586
Receivables:

Interest 162 96 258
TOTAL ASSETS 113,984 230,860 344,844
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 11,113 11,113
TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 11,113 11,113
NET POSITION
Restricted for Trust Designated Purposes 113,984 219,747 333,731
TOTAL NET POSITION 113,984 219,747 333,731

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT NINE

CITY OF WILLOWS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NON-EXPENDIBLE

TRUST AGENCY
FUND FUNDS TOTALS
ADDITIONS
Contributions 29,716 29,716
Use of Money 802 472 1,274
Service Fees 69,670 69,670
Other 1,648 1,648
Total Additions 802 101,506 102,308
DEDUCTIONS
Library 12,615 16,446 29,061
Parks and Recreation 9,665 9,665
Housing and Community Development 79,436 79,436
Other 12,727 12,727
Total Deductions 12,615 118,274 130,889
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (11,813) (16,768) (28,581)
NET POSITION, July 1, 2014 125,797 236,515 362,312
NET POSITION, June 30, 2015 113,984 219,747 333,731

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF WILLOWS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Description of Reporting Entity

The City of Willows, California (the "City") was incorporated in 1886, under the provisions of the State of
California. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following
services: public safety (police and fire), streets, sanitation, culture-recreation, public improvements,
planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

The City complies with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The City’s reporting entity
applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary
funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles
Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The accounting principles and
practices are discussed in subsequent sections of this note. All other notes are organized to provide
explanations, including required disclosures, of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2015.

The Reporting Entity

The City, for financial purposes, includes all of the funds and account groups relevant to the operations of
the City of Willows. The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have been
formed under applicable state laws or separate and distinct units of government apart from the City.

B. Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements,

The government wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in
net assets) report information of all the non-fiduciary activities of the City and its component units. For the
most part, the effect of inter fund activities has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds financial statements. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues if received within 60 days of year-end.



Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the "current financial resources measurement focus” and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that (generally) only current assets and current
liabilities are included on their balance sheets. Statements of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for governmental funds generally present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Revenues are recognized when they
are both measurable and available and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds- Are utilized to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
trusts for individuals, private organizations, or other governments or for major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Sewer Enterprise Fund- This fund accounts for sewer connection, collection, and treatment operations.
Water Enterprise Fund- This fund accounts for the water distribution operations.

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

L. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all
funds. These budgets, except as stated below, are adopted on the cash basis of accounting.

2. The encumbrance system of budgetary accounting is not utilized.

3. The City Council approves, by motion, total budget appropriations. Any revisions that alter the
total appropriations of any fund must be approved by the City Council. Therefore, the level of
budgetary responsibility is by total appropriations; however, for report purposes, this level has
been expanded to a functional basis (General Govt, Public Safety, etc).

4. Unused appropriations for all of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of year, unless
specifically appropriated to the following year by the City Council.

5. The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as revised
during the year.

E. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City
of Willows within the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS™) plans and
the additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.



F. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are deposits and investments readily convertible into known amounts of cash
with original maturities at date of purchase or deposit of less than three months.

INVESTMENTS

The City records its investment at original cost, with applicable premium or discounts from par value
amortized over the period to maturity of the investment. Cost vs. fair market value of such investments are
presented at Note 2, but are not reflected in the financial statements. Fair market value has been
determined based on quoted market prices

RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES:

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the year is referred to as either due to or due from other funds. All trade and property tax receivables are
shown net of allowance for uncollectible accounts, which management has determined to be zero. Property
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of the first Monday in March. Property taxes are payable
in two installments on December 10 and April 10. The City collects its share of property taxes through the
County of Glenn. The City relies on the competency of the County in determining its share of the overall
property tax collections.

PREPAID ITEMS:

Certain payments to venders and others reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government wide and fund financial statements.

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Property, plant and equipment of all funds and component units are stated at historical cost or estimated
historical cost and are reported in the applicable governmental or business type column in the government
wide financial statements, Capital assets are defined by the city as assets with an individual cost of more
than $500 and an estimated useful life of more than two years. Capital assets, except for land, are
depreciated using estimated lives of five to fifty years. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and
related depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in

operations.

As permitted by GASB Statement No. 34, the City has elected to not report infrastructure, other than those
in business type funds, that is pre-existing as of June 1, 2003, and began prospective reporting of
infrastructure assets acquired or constructed during the cutrent fiscal period.

HOUSING AND REHABILATION LOAN PROGRAM:

The City has entered into an agreement with the State of California where by the City will loan, for
qualifying rehabilitation projects, funds to individuals within the City of Willows.

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City provides for accrued compensatory absences for vacation, certain holidays, and in-lieu of
overtime compensation. The range of allowed accrual of said types of compensation vary based upon the



classification of compensatory absence. The City accrues the liability associated with the available accrued
compensatory absences on an annual basis. As of June 30, 2015, said accrual was $198,784.

LONG-TERM DEBT:

In the government wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long term debt and other obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business type activities or proprietary fund type statements of net assets.

NET POSITION:

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, the City utilizes the
following fund balance classifications:

Restricted- Fund balance amounts that are constrained for the specific purposes which are externally
imposed by providers, such as creditors, or amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation

Committed-Fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed by
the City through formal action of the highest level of decision making authority and does not lapse at year-
end

Uncommitted-Positive fund balances within the General fund which has not been classified with above
mentioned categories.

The City uses restricted funds to be expended first when both restricted funds be spent first when both
restricted and uncommitted fund balances are available unless legal documents prohibit doing this, such as
grant agreements that require uncommitted funds be spent first or require dollar for dollar spending.

The City does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy.

A Schedule of Net Position is disclosed in Statement Four of this financial statement.

G. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.

NOTE 2 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2015 are reported at cost (fair market value differences are
immaterial on cash equivalent deposit and investments) and consisted of the following:

Cash Held on Premises $ 200
Cash In Bank 1,862,469
Bank Money Market Accounts 707,712
Local Agency Investment Fund 1,823.313
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $4,393,694
Custodial Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2015, Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized under the provisions of the California Government
Code, California banks are required to secure a City's deposits by pledging government securities as



collateral. The market value of the pledged securities must equal at least 110 percent of the City's deposits.
It is the City's policy not to waive the collateral requirements.

California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust decd
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of a city's total deposits. It is the City's policy to accept this
form of collateral.

At June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the City’s cash accounts was $2,783,752 and the bank balances
were $2,570,181. The carrying value and the bank balances differ due to outstanding checks. Of the bank
balance, $1,897,638 was not covered by FDIC insurance but was subject to collateralization.

California Local Agency Investment Fund:

The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a special fund of the California State Treasury through
which local governments may pool investments. The City and the Agency each may invest up to
$40,000,000 in the fund. Investments in LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash
within 24 hours without loss of interest.

Investments

Investments at June 30, 2015 are presented at cost and fair value as follows:

Rating Cost Fair Value
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit FDIC Insured  $1,202,000 $1,208,234
United States Agency-FNMA AAA $ 150,000 $ 151,905
Total $1,352,000 $1,360.139

The City’s investment policy limits the maturity of investments to five years from date of purchase in
accordance with California Government code 53600. Maturities of investments held at June 30, 2015
consist of the following:

Par Maturity Less ~ Maturity Greater

Than One Year Than One Year
Negotiable Cettificates of Deposit $1,202,000 $300,000 $ 902,000
United States Agency Notes 150,000 150,000
Total $1,352,000 $300,000 $1,052,000

Authorized Investments:

In accordance with Section 53601 of the California Government Code, the City may invest in the following
types of investments:

Securities of the US Government, or its agencies

Certificates of deposit placed with commercial banks and savings and loan institutions
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

Bankers Acceptances

Commercial Paper

Local Agency Investment Fund Demand Deposits

Passbook Savings Account Demand Deposits

Medium Term Corporate Note



Such investments are subject to minimum credit rating standards at the time of purchase by the City’s
Investment Policy in accordance with Section 53600 of the California Government Code.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy does not place limits on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer.
At June 30, the City had the following investments that represent more than five percent of the funds total

investments:

Goldman Sachs Bank 18%
Discover Bank 18%
Barclay’s Bank 15%
Federal Nat’l Mortgage Assn. 11%
State Bank of India 11%
Ally Bank 7%
GE Money Bank 7%
Landmark Community Bank 6%

Allocation of Interest Income Among Funds

[nterest income from pooled investments is allocated 1) to those funds that are required by law or
administrative action to receive interest and 2) to the proprietary funds. Interest is allocated on an annual
basis based on the cash balance in each fund receiving interest.

NOTE 3 PROPERTY TAXES

The City’s ad Val Orem property tax is levied each July 1 on the assessed value listed as of March 1 for all
real and business personal property located within the City. The assessed value of the roll on January 1,
2014 upon which the levy for the 2014-15 year was based was $274,742,778.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of the first Monday in March. Property taxes are
payable in two installments on December 10 and April 10. The City collects its share of property taxes
through the County of Glenn. The City relies on the competency of the County in determining its share of
the overall property tax collections.

NOTE 4 CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Capital Assets

A summary of changes in Governmental Capital Assets (Land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure and
rolling stock only) follows: Please also refer to Note 1.

July 1 $7,676,360
Additions 208,230
Deletions (6,.569)
June 30 $7,878,021
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3.774.665)

Net Property, Plant, Infrastructure and Equipment $ 4,103,356



Business Type Capital Assets

A summary of changes in business type capital assets is as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment July 1 $13,647,136
Additions 55,129
Property, Plant & Equipment June 30 $13,702,265
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3.269.536)
Net Property, Plant and Equipment $10,432,729

With respect to leased purchase assets, it is the City's policy to capitalize the cost of these assets in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

NOTE 5 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions of the City of Willows for the Year ended
June 30, 2015

Governmental Funds Long Term Debt Transactions
Fire Equipment Capital Lease

Long term Debt July 1 $ 144,741
Additions 0=
Repayment (46,162)
Long term Debt June 30 $ 98,579

Interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $6,441.
Capitalized Lease-Fire Equipment:

On October 4, 2006, the City entered into a capital lease/purchase with Municipal Finance Corporation for
the acquisition of a fire engine for the Willows Fire Department. The term of the financing is for 10 years
at a rate of 4.45%. The annual requirements to amortize debt outstanding as of June 30, 2015, are as
follows:

Fiscal Interest  Principal Total
Year Payment Payment Payment
2015/16 4,338 48,265 52,603
2016/17 2.289 50314 52,603
Total 6,627 98,579 105,206
Business Type Long Term Debt Transactions
Wastewater Treatment
Construction Loan
Long term Debt July 1 $6,331,000
Additions -0-
Repayment (93,000)
Long term Debt June 30 $6,238,000

Interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $260,579.



Federal Construction Loan Payable:

On August 10, 2004 the City Council entered into a loan agreement with the United States Department of
Agriculture- Rural Development Services (USDA-RD) for a loan for the improvement of its Wastewater
Facilities (See Note 9). The maximum loan amount is $6,889,000 to be repaid over 40 years at an interest
rate of 4.125%. .

The annual requirements to amortize the loan as of June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Fiscal Interest Principal Total

Year Payment Payment Payment
2015/16 255,317 97,000 352,317
2016/17 251,233 101,000 352,233
2017/18 246,964 106,000 352,964
2018/19 242,509 110,000 352,509
2019/20 237,889 114,000 351,889
2020/21-2024/25 1,113,214 646,000 1,759,214
2025/26-2029/30 965,374 792,000 1,757,374
2030/31-2034/35 784,534 968,000 1,752,534
2035/36-2039/40 563,248 1,185,000 1,748,248
2040/41-2044/45 292,277 1,451,000 1,743,277
2045/46-2046/47 27.844 668,000 695,844
Total $4,980,401 $6,238,000 $11,218,401

NOTE 6 OTHER REQUIRED FUND DISCLOSURES

A. Excesses of Expenditures over Appropriations in Individual

Funds
Expenditures Appropriations
Gas Tax GC 2106 30,191 23,929
Gas Tax GC 2107 69,231 65,255
Community Discretionary 35,519 32,448
Supplemental Law Enforcement 128,871 100,000
AB 109 Overtime Funding 14,592 10,756

All expenditures in excess of appropriations were funded via existing fund balances or 2014-15 revenue
within the given fund.

B. Deficit Fund Balances or Retained Earnings Balance of Individual Funds

At June 30, 2015, no Fund Balances within the City stood in a deficit balance.

These deficits, if any, are primarily the result of the unique accounting requirements of these
funds. Management believes that they do not represent a significant financial burden at this time
and is closely monitoring the activities in these funds to insure improved financial position.



C. Pooled Cash Inter-fund Receivable and Payable Balances:

Such balances at June 30, 2015 were:

Due From Due to

Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 209,514
State Transportation Improvement Program 62,119
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services 28,574
USDQJ CHRP II Grant 31,427
OJP- Bulletproof Vest Program 444
CDBG-Housing Studies 27,340
HOME-Senior Housing Project 59,610
Totals $ 209,514 $209,514

D. Individual Fund Operating Transfers

for the year Ended June 30, 2015 transfers were as follows:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
To General Fund $ 77,234
From Sewer Enterprise Fund $ 77,234
To Community Discretionary Fund $ 14,493
From1992 CDBG Housing Loans $ 4076
2003 CDBG Housing Loans 1,093
1990 CDBG Housing Loans 3,264
1997 CDBG Housing Loans 3,725
2000 CDBG Housing Loans 2,335

Totals $ 91,727 $ 91,727

NOTE 7 PENSION PLANS
A. General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
City of Willows’ separate Safety (police and fire) and Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Pension Plans,
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State
statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full
description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information
that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is
one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement



2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 3% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years’ service 5 years’ service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50— 60 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 3.0% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 26.582% 6.25%

Safety

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 3% @ 50 2.7% @ 57

Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments

5 years’ service

monthly for life

5 years” service
monthly for life

Retirement age 50 50-57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 3.0% 2.0% to 2.7%
Required employee contribution rates 9% 11.50%

44.325% 11.50%

Required employer contribution rates

Contributions — Section 208 14(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Local
Government is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the

contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan
were as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Contributions - employer $ 167,222 $323,295
Contributions - employee (paid by employer) $16,029 $5,335



B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2015, the Local Government reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares
of the net pension liability of each Plan as follows:

Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous $2,293,531
Safety $3,111,112
Total Net Pension Liability $5,404,643

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the
total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update
procedures. The Local Government’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of
the Local Government’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The Local Government’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Proportion- June 30, 2014 0.03686% .05000%

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Local Government recognized pension expense of
$439,939. At June 30, 2015, the Local Government reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $517,795

Differences between actual and expected experience

Changes in assumptions 0

Change in employer's proportion and differences between 86317
the employer’s contributions and the employer’s
proportionate share of contributions

Net differences between projected and actual eamings
on plan investments

Total $604,112 ($1,106,155)

($1,106,155)

$517,795 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

"



YearEnding

June 30
2016 $(246,955)
2017 (246,955)
2018 (247,603)
2019 (254,734
2020 ) 0
Thereafter 0

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Miscellaneous Safety
Valuation Date June 30,2013 June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 3.30%-14.20% (1) 3.30%-14.20% (1)
Investment Return 7.50% (2) 7.50% (2)
Mortality Derived using CalPERS’ membership data
for all funds.

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pensjon plan investment expenses, including inflation

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,
2013 valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period
1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% for each Plan.
To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for
each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would
be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans
run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the
municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent
will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are
presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used
in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to
be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65
percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net
Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not
find it to be a material difference.
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CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to
the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS
expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations
through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference
in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quatter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New

Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)
Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.99% 243%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The
following presents the Local Government’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the Local Government’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous Safety
1% Decrease 6.50% 6.50%
Net Pension Liability $3,595,320 $4,645,852
Current Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability $2,293,531 $3,111,112
1% Increase 8.50% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability $1,213,169 $1,846,552

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports

E. Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2015, the City of Willows reported a payable of $-O- for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the Pension Plan required for the year ended June 30, 2015.

NOTE 8 JOINT VENTURE

The City is a member of the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund Joint Powers Authority
(Authority) for workers’ compensation and liability insurance purposes.

The following joint venture disclosures are made in compliance with GASB Code Section J50.103:

A. Description of Joint Powers Authority

The Authority is comprised of 21 Northemn California Cities and is organized under a joint powers
agreement pursuant to the California Government Code. The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and
administer programs of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess liability
coverage.

Each member City has a representative on the Board of Directors. Officers are elected annually.

B. Self-Insurance Program

General Liability Insurance: Annual deposits are paid by member cities and are adjusted retrospectively to
cover costs. Each member city, including Willows, self-insures for the first $50,000 of each loss for
liability and $100,000 for workers’ compensation. Participating cities shared in loss occurrences in excess
up to $500,000 for fiscal year 2015, $39,500,000 in excess coverage for liability and $4,500,000 in workers
compensation, per occurrence, was purchased by the Authority. Specific coverage includes:
comprehensive and general liability, personal injury, contractual liability, errors and omissions, and auto
liability.
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C. Condensed Financial Information of the Authority

Noted below is a condensed audited Statement of Net Position of the Authorities Combined Worker's
Compensation Insurance and Liability Insurance Fund as of June 30, 2015 (Latest available):

Assets $ 51,027,029
Liabilities 41,646,901
Total Net Position $ 9.380,128

D. Claims and Judgments

The City accounts for material liability claims and judgment in accordance with GASB Code Section
C50.110. When it is probable that a claim liability has been incurred at year-end, and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated, the City records the estimated loss, net of any insurance coverage under
its self-insurance program. At June 30, 2015, the City, in the opinion of the City Attorney, had no material
claims, which would require loss provision in the financial statements. Small dollar claims and judgments
are recorded as expenditures when paid.

NOTE 9 POST EMPLOYMENT (RETIREE) HEALTH BENEFITS

Plan Description
The City provides a defined benefit healthcare plan (the “Retiree Health Plan”). The Retiree Health Plan

provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees through the CalPERS Health Benefit Program,
which covers both active and retired members. Spouses are also covered throughout his or her life. The
City only pays up to the required minimum employer premium contribution calculated using the unequal
contribution method. Under this method, the City’s contribution for the retiree is calculated by the number
of years the City has participated in CalPERS, multiplied by at least five percent (5%), and multiplied by
the current employer contribution toward active employees, which is adjusted based on the medical care
portion of the Consumer Price Index. Benefit provisions are established by the City Council.

Funding Policy
The City’s Council will not be funding the plan in the current year. Management will review the funding

requirements and policy annually and confer with Council on an as needed basis.

Apnual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual

required contribution of the employer (ARC). The City has elected to calculate the ARC and related
information using the alternative measurement method permitted by GASB Statement No. 45 for
employers in plans with fewer than one hundred total plan members. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over the remaining period of 30 years. The following
table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to
the plan, and changes in its net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Health Plan:

Annual Required Pension Contribution $16,568
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution -

Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) $16,568
Contributions Made (11,114)
Net Increase in OPEB Obligation $ 5454
Net OPEB Obligation-Beginning of the Year 172,051
Net OPEB Obligation-End of the Year $177,505
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The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net
OPEB obligation for the current fiscal year is as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB  Percentage of  Net OPEB

Ended Cost Annual OPEB  Obligation
Cost Contributed
06/30/15 $16,568 67%  $5454

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2014, the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $177,505, all of which was
unfunded. ’

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrences of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer as subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits,

Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial vale of assets, consistent
with the long-term prospective of the calculations.

The following simplifying assumptions were made:

Retirement age for active employees — Based on the historical average retirement age for the covered group,
active plan members were assumed to retire at age 60, or at the first subsequent year in which the member
would qualify for benefits.

Marital status — Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to continue throughout
retirement.

Mortality — Life expectancies at the calculation date are based on the most recent mortality tables published
by the National Center for Health Statistics website (www.cdc.gov). The calculation of OPEB liability for
each year is based on the assumption that all participants will live until their expected age as displayed in
the mortality tables.

Turnover — The probability that an employee will remain employed until the assumed retirement age was
determined using non-group-specific age-based turnover data provided in Table 1 in paragraph 35 of
GASB Statement No. 45. In addition the expected future working lifetimes of employees were determined
using Table 2 in paragraph 35c of GASB Statement No. 45.

Healthcare cost trend rate — The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums was set at 4%,
which is within the range recommended by CalPERS OPEB Assumption Model.
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Health insurance premiums — 2012 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as a basis for
calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Payroll increase — Changes in the payroll for current employees are expected to increase at a rate of
approximately 1.0% annually.

Discount rate — The calculation uses an annual discount rate of 3%. This is based on the assumed long-
term return on plan assets or employer assets.

Actuarial cost method - The entry age actuatial cost method was used. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining
amortization period at July 1, 2012, was thirty years.

Participation- A 30% employee participation rate is assumed.

Plan for Funding
On an ongoing basis, the City will be reviewing its assumptions, comparing them against actual experience

and recalculating the needed funding with the goal of paying for postemployment benefits out of interest
earned on designated funds.

Required Supplementary Information: Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued Actuarial Unfunded Annual UAAL
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Value of Liability Funded Covered asa%
Valuation Entry Age Assets (UAAL) Status Payroll of payroll
Date (a) (b) (a-b) (b/a) (c) ([a-b)/c)
7/1/2009 $349,551 $0 $ 349,551 0% $ 1,900,871 18.4%
7/1/2012 $146,436 $0 $ 146,436 0% $ 1,419,060 10.3%

NOTE 10 LITIGATION

The City estimates that potential claims not covered by insurance resulting from such litigation will not
materially affect the financial statements of the City.

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs. These programs are subject
to program compliance audits by the grantors. Accordingly, the City's compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established at some future date. While the contingency for un-reimbursed
expenditures could potentially be material, the amount, if any, of which may be disallowed by the granting
agencies cannot be determined at this time.

NOTE 12 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Service Code Section 457. The plan, available to City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available
to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the beneficiary participant=s rights
under the plan are equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant.

It is the opinion of the City that the City has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of
due care that would be required of the ordinary prudent investor.
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NOTE 13 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were issued,
January 8, 2016, and determined that no events have occurred that meet the requirements for disclosure set
for the by FASB Statement No. 165.

NOTE 14 WATER ENTERPRISE

Effective July 1, 2014, the California Water Quality Control Board made effective revised standards
regarding Community Water Well Standards. More specifically, the standard for Chromium-6 inclusion in
water from said wells may not exceed 10 parts per billion.

The City owns and operates a well that services 3 commercial customers. Based upon testing results at
other non-City owned well sites, there is a reasonable likelihood that the City well may exceed the newly
established standard. If standards are exceeded at said well, the City will need to determine the viability of
servicing water customers in the future.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



STATEMENT ONE

CITY OF WILLOWS

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts General Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes 2,524,500 2,524,500 2,511,649 (12,851)
Licenses, Permits and Franchise 223,800 223,800 274,936 51,136
Fines Forfeitures and Penalties 21,500 21,500 15,591 (5,909)
Intergovernmental 493,500 493,500 493,144 4,644
Charges for Services 119,936 119,936 117,778 (2,158)
Interest 15,000 15,000 15,582 582
Other 21,500 76,148 82,967 6,819
Total Revenue 3,419,736 3,474,384 3,516,647 42,263
EXPENDITURES
General Government 577,769 577,769 581,027 (3,258)
Public Safety 2,019,502 2,072,502 2,064,694 7,808
Parks and Public Works 487,855 487,855 384,789 103,066
Recreation 141,615 141,615 139,791 1,824
Library 178,386 178,386 154,187 24,199
Housing and Community Development 146,854 166,854 170,102 (3,248)
Capital Outlay 12,500 67,148 99,124 (31,976)
Total Expenditures 3,564,481 3,692,129 3,593,714 98,415
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (144,745) (217,745) (77,067) 140,678
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 77,234 77,234 77,234 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 77,234 77,234 77,234 0
Net Change in Fund Balance (67,511) (140,511) 167 140,678
Fund Balance, July 1, 2014 1,358,316 1,358,316 1,358,316 0
Fund Balance, June 30, 2015 1,290,805 1,217,805 1,358,483 140,678

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF WILLOWS
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan

As of June 30, 2015
City of Willows

Miscellaneous Plan
Plan's Proprtion of the Net Pension Liability 0.03686%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 2,293,531
Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll 760,517
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 301.58%

as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position 76.63%

as a Percentage of the Plan's Total Pensfon Liability

Clty of Willows
Safety Plan
0.05000%
3,111,049
719,495

432.39%

72.85%

STATEMENT TWO
City of Willows
PEPRA-Police Plan

0.00000%
$ 63
$ 44,264
0.14%
81.36%



CITY OF WILLOWS
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
As of June 30, 2015

Contractually Required Contributions
Actuarially Determined

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contribution

Contribution Deficiency
Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered
-Employee Payroll

STATEMENT THREE

City of Willows City of Willows City of Willows
Miscelianeous Plan Safety Plan PEPRA-Police Plan
161,705 299,688 L) 6,741
(161,70s) (299,688) s (6,741)
- - $ -
760,517 719,495 b 44,264
21.26% 41.65% 15.23%



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF WILLOWS

STATEMENT FOUR
Page 1 of 2

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN INDIVIDUAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NET PFRIOR NET TRANSFERS TRANSFERS NET
POSITION PERIOD RECEIPTS IN ouT POSITION
FUND June 30,2014 ADJUSTMENT (EXPENDITURES) June 30, 2015
GENERAL FUND
General Fund 1,153,316 (77,067) 77,234 1,153,483
General Fund-Working Reserve 200,000 0 200,000
General Fund-Surplus Property 5,000 0 5,000
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 1,358,316 0 (17,06T) 77,234 ] 1,358,483
PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS FUNDS
State Transportation Improvement Program 0 0 0
Willows Lighting and Landscape District 9,837 354 10,191
TDA-Local Transportation Funds 32,282 222 32,504
Mall Maintenance 17,725 (2,726) 14,999
Storm Drainage Impact 174,194 73,255 247,449
Street Development Impace 29,699 40,182 69,881
Park Facllitles Impact 151,476 101,765 253,241
I-5 Interchange Impact 283,155 23,181 306,336
CA Recycle Grant 8,371 599 8,970
TOTAL PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS 706,739 [] 236,832 0 0 943,571
706,739
GAS TAX FUNDS
RSTP 187,985 17,483 205,468
Gas Tax 2105 78,740 14,907 93,647
Gas Tax 2106 9,271 (6,589) 2,682
Gas Tax 2107 21,951 (19,480) 2,471
Gas Tax 2107.5 588 3,711 4,299
Gas Tax 2103 280.408 57.434 337.842
TOTAL GAS TAX 578,943 0 67,466 (] 0 646,409
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Certified Access Specialist 633 317 950
Community Discretionary 138,245 (17,236) 14,493 135,452
2003 CDBG Housing Loans 0 1,093 1,093 [
Economic Devlopment 43,641 (7,776) 35,865
1992 CDBG Housing Loans 0 4,076 4,076 0
19%0 CDBG Housing Loans 0 3,264 3,264 0
1997 CDBG Housing Loans 0 3,725 3,728 0
2000 CDBG Housing Loans [] 2,335 2,335 (1]
RLA - Housing Rehab 2,057 (2,087) 0
HOME Program Revolving Loan 101,814 63397 165,211
HOME-Senior Housing Project 0 [] 0
TOTAL HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMI 286,390 (] 51,088 14,493 14,493 337478
RECREATION
Recreation Reimburseable 6,837 4317 11,154
Recreation Cultural 1,287 9 1,296
TOTAL RECREATION 8,124 0 4,326 0 0 12,450



STATEMENT FOUR

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF WILLOWS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN INDIVIDUAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
NET PRIOR NET TRANSFERS TRANSFERS NET
POSITION PERIOD RECEIPTS IN ouT POSITION
FUND June 30,2014  ADJUSTMENT (EXPENDITURES) June 30, 2015
LIBRARY
County Library 12,143 5,751 17,894
LTSA-Technology Grant 10 (10) 0
CLA-Packard 62 (62) 0
Northnet-Training Funding 0 892 892
CLSA-Dellvery Funding 2,663 1,475 4,138
Literacy Passthrough 0 [] 0
Library-Development Impact 26,237 70,868 96,805
TOTAL LIBRARY 41,118 0 78,614 [] 0 1,n9
PUBLIC SAFETY
Asset Forfeiture 1 L] 1
Fire-Development Impact 35,606 82,215 117,821
Fire Activity 3 0 3
Police Development Impace 18,130 40,129 58,259
FEMA Fimess Grant 209 (209) (]
SLESF 19,891 (10,000) 9,891
CHRPFP-Hiring Grant 0 ] 0
AB 109 Overtime 0 ¢ 0
QOJP- BVP Program 0 (] 0
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 73,868 0 112,138 0 0 186,003
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Non-Expendible Trust Funds 125,797 (11,813) 113,984
Agency Funds 236,515 (16,768) 219,747
TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS 362,312 0 (28,581) 0 0 333,731
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Sewer Enterprise 6,386,392 (M1 (154,050) 77,234 5,437,931
Water Enterprise 104,199 107 104,306
TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 6,490,591 (T17,177) (153,943) 0 71,234 5,542,237

TOTALS 9,906,398 (7117,177) 190,870 91,727 94,727 9,480,091
= === = =t




SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



ROY R. SEILER
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

201 C. North Tehama Phone: 530-934-8841
Willows, CA 95988 Fax: 530-934-8849

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Willows, California

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and
the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Willows, California, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise City of Willows, California’s basic financial statements, and have
issued my report thereon dated January 8, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered City of
Willows, California’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Willow, California’s internal
control. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Willows,
California’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.



My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that I
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Willows, California’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an
opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

January 8, 2016

A

Roy R. Seiler, CPA




ROY R. SEILER
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

201 C. North Tehama Phone: 530-934-8841
Willows, CA 95988 Fax: 530-934-8849

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Council
City of Willows, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

I'have audited the City of Willow’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2015. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
- auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major
federal programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above, I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that I plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about The City’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances.

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of
The City’s compliance.



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In my opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing my audit of compliance, I considered the City’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of The City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of my testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Janu§ry 8, 2016

A

RoyR. Seiler, CPA




ROY R. SEILER
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

201 C. North Tehama Phone: 530-934-8841
Willows, CA 95988 Fax: 530-934-8849

Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council,
City of Willows, California

Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

I'have audited the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards of The City of Willows,
California for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes (the financial statement).

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of a financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement based on my audit. I conducted
my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that I
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statement.

I'believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis formy
audit opinion.



Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statement referred to above presents faitly, in all material respects, the
expenditures of federal awards of the City of Willows, California for the year ended June 30,2015, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

January 8, 2016

LS

Roy R. Seiler, CPA




CITY OF WILLOWS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Pass Through Contract Disbursements/
CFDANumber Grantor Number Award Expenditures

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
US DOJ-CHRP Grant 18.710 2012UMWX0022 § 255,843 $ 63,611
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
CDBG-Houslng Element and Houslng

Conditions Survey 14.228 13-CDBG-8939 § 70,000 $ 22,230
HOME-Senlor Housing Projact (*) 14.239 13-HOME-8611 § 4,600,000 $ 3,375,009
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Reglonal Surface Transportation Exchange 20.205 $ 68,032 $ 52,144
State Transportation Improvement ( Federal Exchange) 20.205 $ 1,026,000 $ 62,119
TOTALS $ 6019875 $ 3,575,203

(@) Maljor Program

Sae Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards



CITY OF WILLOWS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1-BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The schedule of expenditure of federal financial awards is a summary of the activity of the City
of Willows’ federal award programs and has been prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting.



City of Willows
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I.

The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the City
of Willows.

2. The audit report identified no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting that were considered to be a reportable
condition.

3. The audit report identified no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial
statements of the City which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.

4. The audit identified no reportable conditions in internal controls over financial reporting that I
considered to be material weaknesses.

FEDERAL AWARDS

1. An unmodified opinion on the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of
its major federal programs was issued.

2. The audit identified no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over major
federal programs that I consider to be reportable conditions.

3. The audit report identified no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over major federal programs that were considered to be
reportable conditions.

4. The audit report identified no findings that are required to be disclosed under OMB Circular
A-133, Section 510(a).

5. The audit report identified no reportable conditions in internal control over major federal
programs that were considered to be material weaknesses.

6. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type “A” and Type “B” programs was
$300.000.

7. The City did not qualify as a “Low Risk” entity under OMB Circular A-133, Section 530

because an audit performed in accordance with Circular A-133 was not required during each
of the prior two years.



FEDERAL AWARDS, Continued:
8. The following program was tested as a major program:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Home Investment Partnership Program (13-HOME-8611)
CFDA No. 14.239

SUMMARY OF FEDERAL FINDINGS;

Prior Year Findings:
FINDINGS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT - None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS - None
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR STATE COMPLIANCE - None
Current Period:

FINDINGS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT - None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS - None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR STATE COMPLIANCE - None



ROY R. SEILER

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

201 C. North Tehama Phone: 530-934-8841

Willows, CA 95988 Fax: 530-934-8849
E-mail:Roy.Seiler@yahoo.com

Members of the City Council and

The Management of the

City of Willows

Willows, California

I have audited the financial statements of the City of Willows (the City) for the year
ended June 30, 2015, and have issued my report thereon dated January 8, 2016.
Professional standards require that I provide you with the following information related
to my audit.

My Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in my engagement letter dated May 14, 2014, my responsibility, as described
by professional standards, is to plan and perform my audit to obtain reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are
fairly presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and
because I did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that
material misstatements may exist and not be detected by me.

As part of my audit, I considered the internal control of the City of Willows. Such
considerations were solely for the purpose of determining my audit procedures and not to
provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
In accordance with the terms of my engagement letter, I will advise management about
the appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in the notes to the financial statements.
I noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year that were both significant
and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, I am required to inform you, or
transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.



Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were the
computation of depreciation expense and fixed asset useful life. Management’s estimate
of depreciation and fixed asset useful life is based on estimates in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Audit Adjustments

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a
proposed correction of the financial statements that, in my judgment, may not have been
detected except through my auditing procedure. An audit adjustment may or may not
indicate matters that could have a significant effect on the City’s financial reporting
process (that is, cause future financial statements to be materially misstated). In my
judgment, none of the adjustments I proposed, whether recorded or unrecorded by the
City, either individually or in the aggregate, indicate matters that could have a significant
effect on the City’s financial reporting process.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with
management as a matter, whether or not resolved to my satisfaction, concerning a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor’s report. I am pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of my audit.

Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, my professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with me to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
my knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.



Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditor

I generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s
auditor. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of my professional
relationship and my response was not a condition to my retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

I encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing my
audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Council and management of the
City of Willows and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Roy R. Seiler, CPA



